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(Photo by Richard F. Hope) 
Bull Mansion  (226 Bushkill Street, now Noble Art Pianos) 


3-story brownstone covered in white brickote,
 bay window in front, bow window at side, ornate frieze and small turret at roofline.  The Northampton County Tax Records indicate that the original building was built in 1862,
 which is consistent with the “Italianate feel” of the architecture, according to one expert, 
 although it has otherwise been listed as being in a “Victorian” style.
 

The house is built on part of original town Lot No.49 as surveyed by William Parsons when he established Easton in 1752.  This Lot was formally sold by the Penn Family to yeoman (farmer) Jacob Smith in 1807. The original Lot No.49 stretched along Bushkill Street all the way from Sitgreaves Street to North 2nd Street.
  Jacob Smith had apparently fenced in Lot No.49 for a time before he officially acquired it from the Penn Family.
  George Smith, presumably a relative of Jacob’s
 identified as a weaver, officially owned the next Lot (No.51) to the South.  He had officially purchased from the Penn Family in 1802.
  However, Jacob Smith had unofficially occupied this Lot No.51, in a house built before 1779.
  

On 21 March 1808, Jacob and George Smith re-divided the two Lots that they owned between them.  Jacob Smith took the eastern half of both Lots, facing 2nd Street, where he apparently had built his house, a “Small tenement”.  George Smith meanwhile took the western half of both Lots, bounded by Sitgreaves Alley.
  

George Smith ultimately died without a will in 1834 at age 57,
 and his estate was filed for probate in that year.
  On 21 August 1845, a proceeding was called in Orphan’s Court to partition (split up) his property among his heirs.  At that time, his real estate was divided into three “purports”.  Purpart No.1 consisted of a parcel at the corner of Bushkill Street and Sitgreaves Alley (now Sitgreaves Street), with 28’ of frontage on Bushkill Street and a depth of 110’.  The remaining 10’ at the back had been converted into a private alley.  This property was accepted by Elizabeth Smith, widow, as assignee for Jacob Smith, George’s eldest son.  (She  was presumably Jacob Smith’s wife.)  Purpart No.1 had a stone building, and was evaluated at $1,000.  Purpart No.2 consisted of the parcel next door to Elizabeth Smith’s corner piece.  There was no specific mention of any building on the property, and it was only evaluated at $295.  It was accepted by one of George Smith’s daughters, Louisa, who had married Michael Trittenbach.
  Trittenbach had apparently established two entrances to a building there by 1874, when (as part of the inauguration of the new numbering scheme) numbers 222 and 224 Bushkill Street were assigned to him.
  After his death, Michael Trittenbach’s will gave a life estate in the property to his wife, followed by an inheritance to his step daughter, Mary Heilbrun.
 [Both Purparts 1 and 2 would eventually become incorporated into the James Bull Mansion.]  Another portion of  George Smith’s Bushkill Street property (with a frontage of 27’) was included in Purpart No.3, which was sold by the Administrator of George Smith’s estate for $305.
 


Elizabeth Smith kept a 1/3 interest in her “Purpart No.1” at the corner, but gave two other 1/3 interests in that property (one each) to Benjamin Smith and Christian K. Smith.  So the situation remained until after her death.
  On 8 February 1853, the three 1/3 interests were bought up by Christian Schmidt of William Township, who then became the sole owner of the “Purpart No.1” corner property, then still containing a “Stone House”.
  

After purchasing the house, Christian Schmidt appears to have Anglicized his name as “Smith” and moved from Williams Township to Easton.  The 1855 City Directory lists Christian Smith as a “tow path boss” (presumably in connection with the Lehigh Navigation canal along Williams Township and South Easton), and gives his home address as 64 Bushkill Street in Easton.
  In 1860, Christian Smith was listed as a mason by occupation, with a house at 52 Bushkill Street.
   He was not listed in the 1864 Directory (perhaps due to Civil War service),
 but appears again at 52 Bushkill Street in 1870 and 1873, now listed merely as a laborer.
  At the end of 1873, as the new street numbering scheme was being inaugurated, the house that had been 52 Bushkill Street was apparently listed as the residence of “Christianna Smith” and assigned the modern address of 226 Bushkill Street.
  In 1877, the house at 226 Bushkill Street was listed as the home of C. Smith.
  Christian Smith died in 1878 (at age 68),
 and in the following year his estate sold the corner property to James V. Bull, including a “stone house” that may have been the same one that had previously been listed in 1845.
  

James Bull (1841-1930
), a merchant, had come to Easton in 1870 from Newburgh, NY.  The next year, he and his partner Solomon Bush purchased A.K. Chandler’s store, which they renamed the Bush & Bull.
  Both Bush and Bull boarded for a time in the McKeen Duplex at the corner of Bushkill Street and Sitgreaves Alley.
  By 1877, James Bull’s home was listed as being on South 6th Street,
 and the Bushkill Street Duplex where he had roomed was broken up into two separate units in 1878.
  On 30 May 1878, James Bull married Mary A. Bachman, and the couple purchased the corner property at 226 Bushkill Street in a deed dated 11 February 1879.
  The Bulls appear to have moved into the “stone house” immediately after acquiring it from Christian Smith’s estate, because James Bull is listed at the 226 Bushkill Street address in the 1879 Easton City Directory,
 and again in 1881 and thereafter.
  However, there is a curious entry in the 1880 Census which lists him and his wife, Mary, at 225 Bushkill Street.
  Perhaps they in fact had moved temporarily across the street (perhaps pending renovations to the house that created the modern brick construction);  or perhaps the Census taker simply made a recording mistake:  it is unclear at this point.  

In 1886, James Bull acquired the other half of the Bull Mansion’s Bushkill Street frontage from Mary Heilbrun (i.e., Purpart No.2 of George Smith’s 1845 estate).
   According to Easton tradition, the Bull family originally lived in the corner property, but Bull added the other half of the Mansion while his family was on vacation, as a surprise to his wife.  This may account for the apparently more modern appearance of the building materials and decorations, which apparently cover the stone construction of at least the half at the corner.
  Elaborate carved decorations over the entrances to rooms in the “new” (eastern) half of the house, and mahogany paneling, appear to reflect both a new opulence, and a more feminine touch in decoration.
  

· The Bush and Bull partnership’s store operation was expanded in the 1890s, becoming one of the two largest and best-known in the region. It ultimately contained 35 departments (many as large as other complete downtown stores), and employed 250-300 people in the Easton store alone.
  The Bush and Bull interests also obtained other property in Easton.
  The partnership was changed to corporate form in approximately 1930.  James Bull was also President of the Easton National Bank from 1917 until his death, a member of the Executive Committee of the Easton Board of Trade, and an Elder of the First Presbyterian Church for 53 years.
  

One interesting artifact now in the possession of the Bull Family is the Autograph Book of “Jessie” Bull (James Bull’s younger daughter, born in 1883),
 given to her for Christmas 1888 and containing signatures dated through 1894.  One little boy was induced to sign three times:  twice as Tomas M. Chidsey (one dated 1891) and another simply initialed TMC.
  Thomas McKeen Chidsey (known as an adult as T. McKeen Chidsey) was born in 1884, and would have been 7 years old when he signed the 1891 autograph for Jessie.  He later became an Eason attorney, Attorney General of Pennsylvania, and a Justice of the Pennsylvania Supreme Court.  His family was well-established in Easton:  his father (Arthur D. Chidsey)
 was a well-known Easton businessman and financier, and an uncle (Charles Francis Chidsey) was, among other things, the first Mayor of Easton when it was incorporated as a city in 1887.
  Thomas M. Chidsey married Ellen Lea of Philadelphia in 1913;
  Jessie Bull never married.

· Another interesting (single) autograph was Arthur B. Bixler, also dated 1891.
  Bixler, born in 1882 (and so aged approximately 9 when he signed the autograph) later became the proprietor of his family’s Bixler’s Jewelers (the oldest jewelry store in America) until his death in 1945.


On 15 Feb. 1901, Bull put his Mansion into his wife’s sole ownership.  The mansion was then described as being built of brick and covering a 55’ front on Bushkill Street.
  The date of the deed suggests that it may have been a Valentine’s Day present.
   Such a romantic gift might have appealed to Mrs. Bull’s artistic nature:  prior to her marriage she had been “one of the most talented vocalists in the city, and was a soprano soloist at some of the principal churches in Easton.  She always retained her interest in and love for music”.
  


In 1902, James Bull purchased additional land behind the Mansion along Sitgreaves Street, together with a “frame shop and lumber shed”.
    


James Bull died in 1931, at age 80.
  His principal competitor, Wm. Laubach & Sons, took out an advertisement:  “In Deepest Respect the Firm and the Whole Store Family Pay Tribute to a Fine Merchant Mr. James V. Bull A Sincere Friend and Citizen in a Community Where His Business Attainments Have Been an Inspiring Example”.
  James Bull’s wife (Mary A. Bull) inherited the portion of the Bull Mansion property she did not already own; after her death in 1940,
 the entire Bull Mansion went to her daughter, Helen B. Harrison.
 

    
In 1943, Bull’s daughter (Helen B. Harrison) sold the house to Doretta Adams,
 widow of undertaker Charles F. Adams.  The Bull Mansion became the Adams Funeral Home and Adams Family residence.
  The funeral home had originally been established on other premises in approximately 1916.
 

· Shortly thereafter, Mrs. Adams married Charles W. Crouse, a freight conductor with the Lehigh Valley Railroad.

After Doretta retired, her sons
 Robley W. Adams and David C. Adams continued running the Adams Funeral Home.
  Robley inherited the Mansion in a family settlement after Doretta’s death in 1967.
  Robley, a World War II Navy veteran,  was also interested in politics.  He became a deputy coroner in 1962, and the chief deputy coroner two years later. In 1975, he was appointed the first manager of the Easton Parking Garage (Parking Authority), and continued in that job under five successive mayors until he retired in 1992.  Easton Mayor Thomas Goldsmith later said:  

“Everyone who ran for mayor said that the first thing they would do upon getting elected mayor would be to get rid of Robley Adams, and the first thing they did was to promote him and give him a raise.”
  

Robley Adams ran twice (unsuccessfully) for the Democratic Party’s nomination for Mayor of Easton.  He was passionately outspoken in his political positions, and was a well-known figure in Easton political circles.  He was also a fan of Heavyweight Boxing Champion Larry Holmes, traveling to his fights, and partying with Holmes’s supporters.
  


In 1977, the Adams Family allowed the Bull Mansion to be used to film the TV movie of Dashiell Hammett’s “The Dane Curse” (starring James Coburn).  Robley Adams donated the film fees to the Northampton County Society for Prevention of Cruelty to Animals, one of his favorite causes.
  The Adams Funeral Home closed in 1993,
 and Robley died in 2001,
 and the Mansion was formally sold to Nazareth Development LLC in 2003,
 but the upper floors of the Mansion continued as the Adams Family private residence until 2007.
  The house is now occupied by Peter and Elizabeth Becker, for use as the Noble Art Pianos distributorship, also offering free concerts to the public.
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